SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 16, 2016
9:01 a.m

9:01: 48 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair MacKinnon called the Senate Finance Committee
nmeeting to order at 9:01 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Anna MacKi nnon, Co-Chair
Senator Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Peter M cciche, Vice-Chair
Senator Cick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny O son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Senator Bill Stoltze, Sponsor; Brandon Brefczynski, Staff,
Senat or Bill Stolt ze; Janey Hovenden, Di rector,
Cor por at i ons, Busi ness and Pr of essi onal Li censi ng,
Department of Commerce, Community and Econom c Devel opnent;
Dr. Edward Barri ngton, Legi sl ative  Chairnman, Al aska

Chiropractic Society and Board; Dr. Jennifer Jozw ak,
Menber, Alaska Chiropractic Society and Board, Juneau;
Dani el Ceorge, Staff, Senator Bill Stoltze; Kris Curtis,
Auditor, Division of Legislative Audit; Denise Daniello,
Executive Director, Alaska Commssion on Aging, Marie
Darlin, AARP, Juneau; Tim Gussendorf, Staff, Senator Lynman
Hof f man; Sarah Fisher-CGoad, Executive Director, Al aska
Energy Authority, Departnent of Comerce, Comunity and
Econom ¢ Devel opnent.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Debbi e Ryan, Al aska Chiropractic Society, Anchorage; Terry
Snyder, President, American Association of Retired Persons



(AARP), Mat-Su; Amanda Lofgren, Oficer, Al aska Mental
Health Trust Authority, Anchorage; Banarsi Lal, Self,
Fai r banks; Jan Fena, Menber, Soldotna Senior Center
Sol dotna; Crystal Enkvist, Executive Director, Al aska Power
Associ ati on, Anchorage; |ngemar Mathiasson, Energy Mnager,
Nort hwest Arctic Borough, Kotzebue; Peter Cinp, Self,
Anchorage; David Messier, Rural Energy Coordinator, Tanana
Chi efs Conference, Fairbanks; Piper Foster-WIder, Deputy
Director, Renewabl e Energy Al aska Project, Anchorage.

SUMVARY
SB 69 BD OF CHI ROPRACTI C EXAM NERS; PRACTI CE

SB 69 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

SB 124 EXTEND SUNSET ON AK COWM SSI ON ON AG NG

SB 124 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for
further consideration.

SB 196 PONER COST EQ FUND: RESERVE ACCT; DI VI DEND

SB 196 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for
further consideration.

9:02: 44 AM
AT EASE

9:02: 50 AM
RECONVENED

#sb69
SENATE BI LL NO. 69

"An  Act relating to the Board of Chiropractic
Exam ners and the practice of chiropractic.”

9:03: 04 AM

Senat or Dunl eavy disclosed that he had a financial interest
in a chiropractic office.

9:03: 26 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 03/16/16 9:01 A M



SENATOR BILL STOLTZE, SPONSOR, hoped to work as a conduit
for better access to nedical services by increasing access
for high school physicals. He relayed that the Al aska
School Activities Association had lanmented their limted
access to physicals for children, not only availability,
but also efficiency and affordability. He said that schools
had not wused chiropractors for physicals due to anbiguity
in statute. He believed that the bill would provide the
gui dance needed in order to expend access to physicals.

9:06: 57 AM

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon requested a sectional analysis.

9:07: 00 AM

BRANDON BREFCZYNSKI, STAFF, SENATOR BILL STOLTZE, discussed
t he sectional analysis (copy on file):

Section 1: Anends AS 08.20.055 by adding new | anguage
that allows the board to adopt regulations for the
f ol | owi ng:

- Training and scope of practice of chiropractic
interns and chiropractic preceptors;

- Desi gnati on of a national |y recogni zed
certification program for chiropractic clinical
assi st ant s;

- Performance of patient exam nations.

Section 2: Amends AS 08.20.100(b) <clarifying how
chiropractors can accept referral s, aut hori zes
chiropractors to perform school physicals, and allows
the enploynent of certified chiropractic clinical
assistants, chiropractic interns, and chiropractic
preceptors.

Section 3: Anmends AS 08.20.100 by adding a new
subsection (d) that exenpts chiropractic interns from
this section.

Section 4: Amrends AS 08.20.160 regarding the
requi renents for tenporary permts.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 03/16/16 9:01 A M



Section 5: Amends AS 08.20 by adding a new section (AS
08. 20. 168) regarding chiropractic clinical assistants.

Section 6: Amends 08.20.185 by changi ng nane of “peer
review conmttee” to “utilization review conmttee” to
better reflect the purpose of the commttee. Also, the
change is intended to assist in determning what
conplaints warrant a referral to investigative staff.

Section 7: Amends AS 08.20.200 by updating penalties
for unlicensed practice.

Section 8: Anends AS 08.20.210 by updating penalties
for fraudulent |icenses and certificates.

Section 9: Amends definition of “chiropractic
exam nation” |ocated in AS 08.20.900(7).

Section 10: Amends AS 08.20.900 by adding new
definitions for “chiropractic «clinical assistant,”
chiropractic intern,” and “chiropractic preceptor.”

9:10: 09 AM

Senator Hoffman | ooked at Section 2, and wondered whether
the referrals were for chiropractic treatnent or physical
exans.

M. Brefczynski deferred the question to M. Barrington.

9:11:13 AM

Senator O son asked whether other nedical providers were
able to sign off on a sports physical.

Senator Stoltze responded that he did not know t he answer.

9:11: 51 AM

Co- Chair MacKinnon noted that there were several experts
waiting to testify, as well as were available to respond to
gquesti ons.

9:12: 25 AM

Senator Stoltze noted that other practitioners that were
able to perform physicals wunder statute were nedical

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 03/16/16 9:01 A M



doctors, doctors of osteopathic nedicine, advanced nurse
practitioners, and physician's assistants.

9:12: 52 AM

Senator O son queried the nost common reason for a person
to fail a sports physical exam

M. Brefczynski responded that he could not speak to
di squalifying factors for sport physical exans.

9:13:19 AM

Senator O son understood that cardiovascul ar issues were a
main disqualifying factor. He expressed concern that
chiropractic care was generally related to nuscular and
skel etal expertise, and not cardi ovascul ar issues.

JANEY  HOVENDEN, Dl RECTOR, CORPORATI ONS, BUSI NESS AND
PROFESSI ONAL LI CENSI NG DEPARTMENT OF COWWERCE, COVMUNI TY
AND ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT (DCCED), testified that the bill
woul d add layers to the existing chiropractic program She
solicited specific questions on the |egislation.

9: 15: 24 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon stated that medical questions would be
held for the nedical professionals.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered whether the adm nistration was
in favor of the |egislation.

Ms. Hovenden replied that the Board of Chiropractic
Exam ners had conme out in support, but that the division
did not have a position on the bill.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked whet her the division had any input
on the bill.

Ms. Hovenden replied that she did not believe so.

9:16: 00 AM

Senator O son asked whether the bill faced any opposition.

Ms. Hovenden replied that she was not aware of any
opposition to the | egislation.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 03/16/16 9:01 A M



9:16: 05 AM

Senator O son probed whether the State Medical Board and
Board of Nurse Practitioners supported the bill.

Ms. Hovenden responded that those groups had not taken a
position on the | egislation.

9:16: 20 AM

Vi ce-Chair M cciche aske Ms. Hovenden to explain the fiscal
note, specifically the way in which boards and conm ssions
were of no cost to the state.

Ms. Hovenden replied that the division received supported
services, which neant that the |icensees paid for all of
t he expenses for their programw thin the division.

9:16: 52 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon understood that the bill would require
the addition of one, part-tinme position.

Ms. Hovenden replied in the affirmative, and stated that
there woul d al so be a regul ati ons project.

9:17:31 AM

DR. EDWARD  BARRI NGTON, LEG SLATI VE  CHAI RVAN, ALASKA
CHI ROPRACTI C SOCI ETY AND BOARD, testified in support of the
| egislation. He said that the proposed changes outlines in
SB 69 were in the public interest. He stated that all ow ng
the Board of Examiners to set standards for chiropractic
clinical assistance was essential so that any enpl oyee that
had direct patient care contact was fully qualified. He
rel ayed that authorizing and setting standards for doctors
that were already practicing who wshed to host new
graduates, or students who had conpleted all of the
requi renments but had not fully graduated, to acquire nore
clinical experiences. He shared that the law currently
al l owed for chiropractic physicians to exanmine children for
student physicals and to wite excuses to keep them from
participating in sports activities. He relayed that rura

districts in the state currently used chiropractic services
for sports exam nations. He believed that other areas of
the state did not use chiropractors in the same way because
the law was not specific enough. He noted that the statute

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 03/16/16 9:01 A M



had not been addressed since 1988, and that a utilization
review would be a step toward clarification. He stated that
the board had brought penalties for fraudulent practice up
to par with other disciplines.

9:21: 53 AM

Senator O son wondered how many chiropractors were |icensed
in the state.

Dr. Barrington responded that there were 300 currently
| icensed chiropractors; 265 actively practicing.

9:22: 05 AM

Senator O son queried any type of licensing action taken
agai nst |icensees over the past 3 years.

Dr. Barrington replied that no suspension of |icense had
been undertaken. He said that investigations did occur, but
that the board did not hear of those until a determ nation

had been reached. He relayed that within the |ast year, the
board had recomended additional classes for a practitioner
that had made an error in chart keeping.

9:23: 20 AM

Vice-Chair Mcciche queried how the |egislation served the
public interest.

Dr. Barrington replied that public interest was best served
by the qualifications of chiropractor physicians, and by
the ability for parents to select the practitioner
performng their child s physical. He said that in many
cases the availability of other practitioners mght be
scarce.

9:24:31 AM

Vice-Chair Mcciche asked whether a chiropractor could
recoomend that a student avoid a sporting activity for a
cardi ovascul ar reason

Dr. Barrington replied in the affirmative. He stated that

the scope of chiropractic practice was limted, but their
di agnostic and exam nation abilities were unlimted.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 03/16/16 9:01 A M



9:26:16 AM

Vi ce-Chair M cciche understood that currently chiropractors
could not wite letters allowing for participation, but
could wite letters recommendi ng non participation.

Dr. Barrington replied in the affirmative.

9:26: 47 AM

Senator Hoffman reiterated his question about referrals.

Dr. Barrington replied that anyone who walked into a
chiropractic office of their own volition was considered a
self-referred patient. He thought that word "referral™ in
Section 2 was related to a person who walked in off the
street, or was referred by another practitioner or entity.

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon OPENED public testinony.

9:28:16 AM

DR JENNI FER JOZW AK, MEMBER, ALASKA CHI ROPRACTIC SOCI ETY
AND BOARD, JUNEAU, spoke in support of the legislation

9:29:13 AM

Senator O son queried the expertise of chiropractors as
related to disqualifying issues pertaining to sports
physicals, such as cardiovascular disease, rheumatoid
arthritis, or diabetes.

Dr. Jozwiak replied that in her training a Palnmer College
of Chiropractic she had also been a diagnostic teaching
assistant. She shared that in that training she was taught
to recognize red flags for the aforenmentioned issues. She
asserted that patient history was a mmjor factor in
di agnosing nedical conditions, and that there was always
nore than one indicator observed.

9: 30: 38 AM

Senator Bishop referred to a letter in nenber's packets
Pal mer College (copy on file). He pointed out to the
commttee the section related to United States Departnent
of Transportation physicals:

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 03/16/16 9:01 A M



Doctors of Chiropractic are included as eligible
health care providers to provide physical exam nations
by the United States Departnent of Transportation

(DOT). In fact, tw faculty clinicians at the Pal mer
Chiropractic Cinics in the Quad Cties (Davenport and
Bettendorf, lowa, and Mdline and Rock Island, 111.)

are listed on the National registry as certified to
provide DOT “Fit for Duty” physical exans.

The DOT physi cal is a conprehensive evaluation
covering all systems of the body, including a
conprehensive health history and review along with a
urinalysis screening. Al of these exam nation aspects
are taught and tested as part of Palner’s Doctor of
Chiropractic curriculum in both the academc and
clinical portion of the education.

9:31:22 AM

Vice-Chair Mcciche recalled that sports exans had been
fairly sinple in his experience.

Dr. Jozw ak responded that she had a copy of the exam that
she could share with the commttee.

9:32: 32 AM

Senator O son surm sed that chiropractors did not check for
i ngui nal herni as.

Dr. Jozw ak stated that she had patients lay down on the
table with their knees bent while she palpated the area
She explained that anything abnormal was investigated
further.

Senator O son argued that there was no direct exam nation
for an inguinal hernia.

Dr. Jozw ak responded that a check would be done if other
red fl ags were observed.

9:34: 24 AM

DEBBI E RYAN, ALASKA CHI ROPRACTIC SOCIETY, ANCHORAGE (via
tel econference), noted that she did not wish to testify on
t he record.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 03/16/16 9:01 A M



Co- Chai r MacKi nnon CLOSED public testinony.

9:34: 51 AM
AT EASE

9:38: 27 AM
RECONVENED

Senator Dunleavy clarified that he had an interest in an
i nvestment conpany that had an interest in a chiropractic
of fice.

SB 69 was HEARD and HELD in conmmittee for further
consi derati on.

#sb124
SENATE BI LL NO 124

"An Act extending the termnation date of the Al aska
Comm ssion on Aging; and providing for an effective
date."

9:39:47 AM

SENATOR BILL STOLTZE, SPONSCR explained that SB 124 woul d
extend the termnation date of the Al aska Comm ssion on
Aging. He stated that the comm ssion was established in
1981. He remarked that the comm ssion served the grow ng
agi ng popul ation of Al aska. He stated that the recommended
8 year extension was based on the recomendations of the
Legislative Auditor to the Legislative Budget on Audit
Conmittee.

9:42: 25 AM

Co-Chair MacKi nnon solicited additional coments from the
sponsor's support staff.

9:42: 31 AM

DANI EL CGEORGE, STAFF, SENATOR BILL STOLTZE, replied that
the bill had a second section that contained an imedi ate
effecti ve date.

9:43: 02 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 10 03/16/16 9:01 A M



KRI'S CURTIS, AUDI TOR, DIVISION OF LEQ SLATIVE AUDI T, stated
that the comm ssion was serving the public interest by
hel ping ol der Al askans to lead dignifies, independent, and
useful lives thorough advocacy, outreach, and education,
Furthernore, the commssion net the federal requirenent
that each state establish an advisory council to advise the
state on agi ng matters i ncl udi ng devel opi ng and
adm nistering a state plan, and operations conducted under
the plan. She said that the maximum 8 year extension had
been recomended. She noted that 2 recommendati ons had been
made in an effort to inprove operations:

1. The conmmi ssion's executive di rector shoul d
i npl enent and follow procedures to public notice all
comi ssi on neeti ngs.

2. The commssion's chairperson should review and
approve t he | egi sl ation wat ch list pri or to
di stribution.

Ms. Curtis noted that the commission periodically held
tel econferences to gather public input and discuss
| egislation affecting seniors. She added that to facilitate
feedback the comm ssion annually published a |I|egislation
watch list that identified legislative bills that were of
interest to the comm ssion. She stated that a review had
found that the watch lists had contained several bill that
were unrelated to the commssion's responsibilities, which
pronpted a review of the watch |ist before distribution.

9:44: 54 AM

DENI SE DAN ELLO, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, ALASKA COW SSI ON ON
Ad NG spoke in support of the |egislation. She stated that
the comm ssion worked closely with the Division of Senior
and Disability Services in assisting the Departnent of
Heal th and Soci al Services, which was the sole state agency
on aging as authorized by the governor, to fulfil those
responsibilities. She relayed that the D vision of Senior
and Disability Services admnistered the najority of state
and federally funded senior prograns, while the comm ssion
was responsible for developing the state plan for senior
servi ces, advocacy, educat i on, and i nt eragency
col l aboration. She stated that the conmmssion's |ast
reauthorization was 8 years ago, at which tine 3 state
pl ans were devel oped for senior services, the nost recent
of which was conpleted in June 2015. She shared that all of

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 11 03/16/16 9:01 A M



the plans were available online, and satisfied the federa
requirenent to be able to draw down federal funds for
senior prograns. She furthered that the conm ssion was a
mandated statutory advisor to the Alaska Mental Health
Trust Authority, and provided information, budget, and
policy recomendations to the trust regarding the needs of
older Al askans wth Al zheinmer's disease and related
denmentias. She spoke to the conpletion of the first ever
state plan that focused on Al zheiner's disease, and shares
that the docunment was available on the conmssion's
website. She said that the comm ssion supported the
Medicaid Adult Dental Program for Senior Benefits and
Medicaid Reform She relayed that the conm ssion hosted
numerous events and activities to educate and support
seniors and their communities.

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon OPENED public testinony.

9:48: 51 AM

TERRY SNYDER, PRESIDENT, AMERI CAN ASSOCI ATION OF RETIRED
PERSONS (AARP), MAT-SU (via teleconference), spoke in
support of the legislation. She represented 89,000 AARP
menbers who urged the reauthorization of the Conmm ssion on
Aging. She stressed the economc inportance of what the
seni or popul ation brought to the state's economy. She noted
t hat seniors volunteers countless hours in comunities. She
requested quick passage of the bill through the commttee
for the reauthorization of the comm ssion.

9:50: 27 AM

AVANDA  LOFGREN, OFFI CER, ALASKA MENTAL HEALTH TRUST
AUTHORI TY, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified in
support of the legislation. She relayed that the trust
supported program services and policies that woul d
positively inpact the lives of beneficiaries, including
Al askan's who experienced Al zheiner's disease and related
denmentia. She noted that AS 47.30.041 indicated that the
commi ssion should serve as a statutory advisory board to
the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority, and advised the
authority and trustees on the needs of older Al askans wth
cognitive inpartnents. She related that the comm ssion, in
partnership with the trust and other agencies, published
the Al aska Roadmap for Alzheiner's disease and related
dementia in 2015. She stated that the conmm ssion nade
recomendations to the trust board regarding nmental health

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 12 03/16/16 9:01 A M



progranms for senior trust beneficiaries, as well as how to
use funds that benefitted the wvulnerable population of
beneficiaries. She asserted that the conmssion was
integral in developing state plans for senior services,
which |leveraged Oder Anerican Act funding to support
beneficiaries.

9:52: 02 AM

BANARSI LAL, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via tel econference),
testified in support of the legislation. He relayed that he
was acting chair of the Fairbanks Northstar Borough Senior
Citizens Advisory Comm ssion. He said that the Fairbanks
comm ssion supported the work of the Al aska Comm ssion on
Aging. He lauded the comm ssion for serving seniors in the
areas of planning, education, and advocacy. He noted that
the comm ssion had fulfilled federal requirenments under the
O der Anericans Act, which neant that Al aska woul d continue
to receive funds for senior prograns and services. He
praised work of the comm ssion and supported the 8 year
ext ensi on.

9:55:12 AM

JAN FENA, MEMBER, SOLDOTNA SENI OR CENTER, SOLDOTNA (via
t el econf erence), spoke in strong suppor t of t he
| egislation. She testified that the conm ssion was vital in
their advocacy, outreach, and support of ol der Al askans, as
well as their close work in collaboration with senior
centers, Al aska Housing Finance Corporation, the Departnment
of Health and Social Services, the Alaska Mental Health
Trust Authority, ADRC, AARP, Agenet, and nmany other
agencies to help older Alaskans |ive independently in the
community of their choice. She |auded the comm ssion's work
to secure funding for senior progranms and services.

9:57:46 AM

MARI E DARLIN, AARP, JUNEAU, testified in support of the
| egi sl ati on. She echoed Ms. Snyder's comments.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon CLOSED public testinony.

9:59:24 AM

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon solicited further guestions  from
conmi ttee nenbers.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 13 03/16/16 9:01 A M



SB 124 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

9:59:41 AM
AT EASE

10: 00: 39 AM
RECONVENED

#sb196
SENATE BILL NO. 196

"An Act relating to the use of certain unexpended
earnings from the power cost equalization endownrent
fund."

10: 01: 06 AM

Senator Hoffman related that the Power Cost Equalization
program (PCE) had been in existence for 36 years with the
primary purpose of assisting wth the high cost of
el ectrical energy throughout rural Alaska. He said that
many comunities participate and that there had been
di scussion related to the program s high earnings that had
transpired in FY 13 and FY 14. He stated that the bill
woul d ensure that during the high earning years of the
fund, the fund should only pay for its intended purpose and
any excess earnings would be distributed to two other
pr ogr ans.

10: 02: 18 AM

TI'M GRUSSENDORF, STAFF, SENATOR LYMAN HOFFMAN, pointed out
to the commttee that the bill was available in their
packets, as well as a docunent that illustrated the

earnings of the program at 4.3 percent, and a sectional
anal ysis. He discussed the sectional analysis (copy on
file):

Section 1 adds a new sentence to AS 54.4.0820(c)
requiring that the comm ssioner of revenue detern ne
the earnings on the power cost equalization endowrent
fund (PCE fund) for the fiscal year on June 30 each
year .

Section 2 adds a new subsection to AS 42.45.085 that
allows the legislature to appropriate the part of the

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 14 03/16/16 9:01 A M



annual fiscal year earnings of the PCE fund in excess
of the expenditures necessary to achieve the purposes
under AS 42.45.085(a) to the general fund and the
renewabl e energy grant fund, and to appropriate sone
funds back to the PCE fund.

10: 04: 37 AM

SARAH  FI SHER- GOAD, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, ALASKA  ENERGY
AUTHORI TY, DEPARTMENT OF COWWERCE, COVMUNITY AND ECONOM C
DEVELOPMENT, testified in support of the l|egislation. She
stated that the authority supported the concept of being
able to use the excess earnings for the general and
renewabl e energy funds listed in the legislation. She said
that the earnings in FY 16 were difficult to predict, and
that she would work with the bill sponsor to clarify which
fiscal year to use and how nuch funds would be available
for extra purposes.

10: 05: 38 AM

Senator Hof f man announced there was a section in the bil
that would require an anendnent that would create a single
mechani sm for di spensing excess earni ngs.

10: 06: 06 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon stated that she had researched the issue
and had proposed that projects that were currently being
funded at the Alaska Energy Authority should have sone
nexus wth the PCE fund.

10: 06: 54 AM

Co- Chair MacKinnon remarked that as revenue opportunities
in the state shrank, rural Al aska remained in need of many
dollars for investnment in energy to keep famlies warm She
contended that it the state had an energy project that had
cost mllions from in comunities, she wondered why PCE
woul d need to conti nue.

Ms. Fisher-Goad appreciated the conversation. She assured
that committee that AEA was eager to participate in
di scussions concerning to how prograns related to each
other. She nentioned that the PCE program for electrica
projects, hit approximately 30 percent of the kilowatt
hours generated in rural Al aska comunities; approximtely

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 15 03/16/16 9:01 A M



193 communities benefitted from the PCE program She
furthered that the remaining 70 percent of the Kkilowatt
hours were not eligible for cost under the program She
said that the Renewabl e Energy Fund conplinmented the PCE by
participating in reducing costs for comunities, across all
kil owatt hours. She pointed out to the commttee that
schools benefitted greatly from the partnership; they were
not eligible for PCE, but if a utility that serviced a
school had a renewable energy project that reduce costs,
t he school would receive the benefit. She stressed that the
issue was not limted to electricity, but included heating
projects that benefitted comunity facilities and other
prograns. She assured the conmttee that the authority
would work with commttee on their continued investnent in
t he PCE and renewabl e energy prograns.

10: 10: 35 AM

Co-Chair MacKinnon renmarked that Senator Hoffman had
advocated for heating projects wunder the statute. She
remarked that electricity consunption was a big issue, but
that heating honmes was the top priority. She said that as
the state noved into an uncertain fiscal clinmate, there
woul d be tension between electricity versus heati ng.

10: 13: 13 AM

Co-Chair Kelly noted that there was a letter of support
that rmade reference to the 2000 capitalization of the PCE
fund (copy on file). He said that when the state
capitalized the fund, the $100 million had counted agai nst
the state. He stated that Fairbanks woul d receive subsidies
on the gas project thorough | oans.

10:14: 41 AM

Senator Hoffman conmented that the state formerly had
appropriations to fund the PCE with the intent to set up
the endownent. He stated that the anticipation had been
that the program would require additional General Fund
appropriations for several years, but because of earnings
on the fund those appropriations were reduced; in 2015, the
fund was self-functioning and did not require a general
fund appropriation. He believed that energy continued to be
a mjor issue throughout the state and the |egislature
should strive to make Alaska a nore affordable place to
live for all Al askans.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 16 03/16/16 9:01 A M



10: 16: 26 AM

CRYSTAL ENKVI ST, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, ALASKA POVNER
ASSCCI ATI ON, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), spoke in
support of the |egislation. She read from prepared
testinmony (copy on file):

Al aska Power Association (APA), the statewi de electric

utility trade association, supports Senate Bill 196,
which would protect funding for the Power Cost
Equal i zati on Program (PCE) whi |l e al | owi ng

appropriation of funds from the PCE Endowrent for
ot her val uabl e purposes.

APA nmenbers believe this legislation will allow the
PCE program to continue providing a vital neasure of
relief to ratepayers in communities throughout our
State where electric rates are the highest, while
sharing benefits wth the General Fund, the Renewable
Energy G ant Fund and the PCE Endowrent. Thi s
distribution of benefits is especially inportant in
these difficult financial tines.

Many APA nenbers throughout the state have integrated
wind and hydroelectric power into their systens
t hrough funding from the Renewable Energy G ant Fund,
and their custonmers see the results in lower or
stabilized bills. Through SB 196, work could continue
on renewable energy systens that wll positively
i npact Al askans for generations to cone.

APA nenber utilities serve comunities from Barrow to
Unal aska, through the Interior and Southcentral and
down the Inside Passage. W appreciate your decades-
long leadership in assisting our home grown industry
in striving to provide affordable and reliable
el ectric power to Al askans. Your sponsorship of SB 196
continues these collaborative efforts, and we urge
passage of this |egislation.

10:18:43 AM

| NGEMAR  MATHI ASSON, ENERGY  MANAGER, NORTHWEST  ARCTI C
BOROUGH, KOTZEBUE (via tel econference), spoke in support of
the legislation. He stated that the borough had recently
conplete a large w nd/diesel project that would benefit
several comunities. He said that funding for the project

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 17 03/16/16 9:01 A M



had been granted through the Al aska Renewabl e Energy Fund,
and had hedged against the rising cost of diesel fuel,
whi ch had threatened the existence of renote communities.
He stressed the inportance that the PCE fund had been
established to assist rural Alaska communities with the
rising cost of diesel fuel for their electric utilities. He
said that communities had enbraced energy efficient
alternatives, which would |essen the need for the PCE fund
in the future. He stressed that allowng as much of the
excess PCE funds as possible to be transferred into the
renewable energy fund would provide the state a path
forward to eventually build itself out of the need for PCE
He concluded that the future for rural Alaska' s energy
structure was to utilize locally available resources as
much as possi bl e.

10: 20: 31 AM

PETER  CRI WP, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of the legislation. He stated that
reliable and reasonable priced energy needed to be
mai ntai ned on order to support the state's investnents and
to provide fairness in the funding for rural and non-rura
energy projects. He noted that the rural energy fund had
proven to be a successful vehicle for stimulation
technically and economically viable projects since it was
established by the legislature in 2008. He noted that AEAs
annual report indicated that 54 projects were in operation,
and that every dollar invested in the projects would have a
$2.50 return. He believed that the state should naintain
its investnment in maintaining clean, renewabl e energy.

10: 22: 32 AM

DAVID MESSIER, RURAL ENERGY COORDI NATOR, TANANA CH EFS
CONFERENCE, FAI RBANKS (via tel econference), spoke in strong
support of the legislation. He lanmented that rural Al aska
experience electricity costs that ranged upward of $1 per
kil owatt hour, due not only to the cost of oil, but also
the admnistrative costs of mnaging a snall, rura

electric utility. He said that the PCE endownent supported
the PCE program which reduced the cost per kilowatt for
80,000 rural Alaskans across the state. He l|auded the
benefits of the PCE program He noted that the renewable
energy fund had a proven track record of bringing noney
into the state and reducing the long-term cost to the PCE
program He asked legislators to consider adding |anguage

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 18 03/16/16 9:01 A M



to the bill that would allow sone portion of the 30 percent
allocated to the Al aska Renewable Energy Gant fund to
support the Village Energy Efficiency Program (VEEP), which
had an even stronger track record of reducing the |long-term
costs of the PCE program He said that he would be
submtting a letter with over 100 signatures, from across
the Interior, show ng individual support for SB 196.

10: 25: 01 AM

PI PER FOSTER- W LDER, DEPUTY DI RECTOR, RENEWABLE ENERGY
ALASKA PRQIJIECT, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), spoke in
support of the legislation. She asserted that SB 196 woul d
provide an opportunity to provide secure and predicable
funding for renewabl e energy projects across the state. She
recounted a brief history of the successes of the PCE fund.
She stressed that the renewable energy fund provided
signi ficant savi ngs, which would <continue to occur
regardl ess of the price of oil. She relayed that the funds
that SB 196 would provide to renewable energy projects
across the state was significant enough to continue to
| everage private capital to build projects. She furthered
that such public/private partnerships were crucial to
Al aska's future. She urges the commttee to pass SB 196

with the provision to use excess earnings to fund the
renewabl e energy fund begi nni ng 2016.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon CLOSED public testinony.

10: 28: 19 AM
AT EASE

10: 28: 56 AM
RECONVENED

10: 29: 00 AM

Co- Chair MacKinnon |ooked at the fiscal not e, whi ch
reflected a loss in 2015. She thought that further
di scussion of the fiscal note should occur after the bil
was anended.

10: 29: 48 AM

Vice-Chair Mcciche asked whether the bill would take
affect after the return reached 7 percent.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 19 03/16/16 9:01 A M



Senator Hoffrman replied that for several years he had
advocated that the 7 percent was too high, and had
recommended that the rate of return for investnent should
be 4.5 percent because investnent decisions would have to
be riskier at a 7 percent return. He believed that the
prudent investnment rule needed to be addressed as it
related to the 7 percent investnent.

10: 31: 21 AM

Co-Chair MacKinnon said that the 7 percent was a cap that
woul d ensure that no nore than that was w t hdrawn.

Senator Hoffman agreed, but felt that it should be
clarified further that the nunber was not a "hard" nunber.
He reiterated that it was inportant to be clear about the
bill's intent, as well as what funds woul d be avail abl e.

SB 196 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon di scussed housekeepi ng.
#

ADJ QURNVENT
10: 35: 09 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 10:35 a.m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 20 03/16/16 9:01 A M



